
In the Matter of )
Wesley Hunt; )
Hunt or Congress; ) MUR 7710
Cabell Hobbs, )

in his official capacity as              )
Treasurer. )

INTRODUCTION

Through counsel, Mr. Wesley Hunt, Hunt for Congress, and Cabell Hobbs, in his official 
capacity as Treasurer, provide the following response to the complaint filed by Elizabeth 
Guide (the “Complainant”) and designated by the Federal Election Commission (the 
“Commission”) as MUR 7710.1

In summary, the complaint alleges that Wesley Hunt knowingly violated 52 U.S.C. 
§ 30118(a) (formerly 2 U.S.C. § 441b(a)) by accepting “excessive payments [from Perry 
Homes] in 2018 in order to further his political campaign.” Compl. at ¶ 3. As explained below, 
the Complainant’s allegation is based on an incorrect employment date on Mr. Hunt’s 
LinkedIn profile and circumstantial evidence, whereas the actual facts make it apparent that 
the thrust of the complaint is without merit. Furthermore, when one compares such facts to 
the three conditions enumerated in 11 C.F.R. § 113.1(g)(6)(iii), it is clear that Mr. Hunt’s
salary during the period of his candidacy is consistent with the Commission’s exemption for 
payments for bona fide employment under this regulation. Accordingly, the Commission 
should dismiss this complaint and summarily close the file in this matter.

ALLEGATION 1: HUNT WAS PAID $51,722.53 FOR 2 MONTHS OF WORK

To support the allegation that Mr. Hunt received “$51,722.53 for 2 months of work”, 
the Complainant cites the $51,722.53 in total salary payments made by Perry Homes in 2018 
that were disclosed on Mr. Hunt’s personal financial disclosure report filed with the U.S. 
House Committee on Ethics on May 15, 2019, and the employment dates listed on Mr. Hunt’s 
LinkedIn profile. See Attachments 1 and 2. Importantly, Mr. Hunt’s period of employment 
with Perry Homes was listed on his LinkedIn profile (and cited by the Complainant) as being 
“November 2018 – present.”

Upon further review, it is clear that Mr. Hunt’s LinkedIn profile is incorrect because 
Mr. Hunt began his employment with Perry Homes as a “Phase II Construction Manager” in 

1 The Respondents received notice of the complaint on March 10, 2020 and were subsequently granted an 
extension to file a response on or before April 22, 2020. 
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mid-April 2018.2 In other words, Mr. Hunt’s period of employment with Perry Homes in 
2018 was 7 1/2 months, not the two months suggested by his LinkedIn profile. Therefore, 
the $51,722.53 in total salary payments received by Mr. Hunt in 2018 constitute an average
monthly salary of $6,896.38, which is not excessive compensation for a Phase II Construction 
Manager at Perry Homes. 

It is also worth mentioning that 11 C.F.R. § 111.4(d)(3)-(4) requires a complaint to 
conform to the following provisions:

(3) It should contain a clear and concise recitation of the facts which describe 
a violation of a statute or regulation over which the Commission has 
jurisdiction; and

(4) It should be accompanied by any documentation supporting the facts 
alleged if such documentation is known of, or available to, the complainant.

Given that the Complainant’s only “substantiation” for the allegation that Mr. Hunt 
received “$51,722.53 for 2 months of work” has proven to be incorrect, the copy of the 
LinkedIn profile proffered by the Complainant cannot possibly constitute a “clear and
concise recitation of the facts.” And it certainly cannot be considered “documentation 
supporting the facts.” 

Therefore, even though the Campaign has proven that the allegation that Mr. Hunt 
received “$51,722.53 for 2 months of work” is substantively false, this allegation should also 
be dismissed by the Commission as a matter of procedure.

ALLEGATION 2: HUNT BECAME A PART-TIME EMPLOYEE TO ALLOW HIM TO FOCUS 
ON HIS CONGRESSIONAL CAMPAIGN

To support the allegation that “[i]n January 2019, Mr. Hunt became a part-time 
employee of Perry Homes [sic] to allow him to focus on his congressional campaign,” the 
Complainant cites Schedule F of Mr. Hunt’s personal financial disclosure report. In that 
section of the personal financial disclosure report, which lists Mr. Hunt’s agreements with 
third parties, Mr. Hunt essentially discloses the fact that, as of the time he filed the report, he 
was no longer a full-time employee of Perry Homes.

Without providing any more facts or evidence to support the allegation, the 
Complainant makes an incredible leap to wrongly assume that Mr. Hunt’s congressional 
campaign received a benefit when Perry Homes transitioned Mr. Hunt to part-time 
employment status. In reality, and quite ironically given the allegation, it is Mr. Hunt’s 

2 Mr. Hunt does not know why his LinkedIn profile indicates that “November 2018” was the commencement of 
his employment with Perry Homes, so he assumes it was nothing more than user error.
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understanding that Perry Homes began paying him as a part-time employee precisely to 
comply with campaign-finance laws.

The Act prohibits corporations from contributing to candidates. See 52 U.S.C. § 
30118(a) (formerly 2 U.S.C. § 441b(a)). The term “contribution” includes “any gift, 
subscription, loan, advance, or deposit of money or anything of value made by any person 
for the purpose of influencing any election for Federal office,” id. § 30101(8)(A), and also 
“any direct or indirect payment, distribution, loan, advance, deposit, or gift of money, or any 
services, or anything of value . . . to any candidate . . . in connection with any election to 
[federal office].” 11 C.F.R. § 114.1(a)(1).

There are a number of exceptions to the definition of contribution, including salary 
payments related to an individual’s employment, when the following three conditions are 
met:  

(A) The compensation results from bona fide employment that is genuinely 
independent of the candidacy; 

(B) The compensation is exclusively in consideration of services provided by 
the employee as part of this employment; and 

(C) The compensation does not exceed the amount of compensation which 
would be paid to any other similarly qualified person for the same work over 
the same period of time. 

11 C.F.R. § 113.1(g)(6)(iii).

In the instant case, the relevant facts are as follows:

When Perry Homes hired him in April 2018, Mr. Hunt had no intention of running 
for Texas’s 7th Congressional District in 2020.3

To the best of Mr. Hunt’s knowledge, his compensation results from bona fide
employment that is genuinely independent of his candidacy for the U.S. House of 
Representatives.

To the best of Mr. Hunt’s knowledge, the compensation he has received from Perry 
Homes is exclusively in consideration for the services he has provided to the company. 

3 The seat, at that time, was held by Mr. John Culberson, a long-time Republican incumbent who was 
unexpectedly defeated by Democrat Lizzie Fletcher in the 2018 general election. Mr. Hunt, a Republican, is now 
facing Fletcher, the incumbent Democrat, in the 2020 general election.
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To the best of Mr. Hunt’s knowledge, the compensation he has received from Perry 
Homes does not exceed the amount of compensation that the company would have paid to 
any other similarly qualified person for the same work over the same period of time. 

Again, the Complainant has not “supplied evidence that [Mr. Hunt’s] compensation 
was provided for something other than services provided as part of employment.” The 
Complainant lacked the basic, good-faith basis necessary for making this allegation in the 
first place. 11 C.F.R. § 111.4. 

CONCLUSION

Long ago, the Commission recognized that employment could coexist with 
campaigning and, in adopting 11 C.F.R. § 113.1(g)(6)(iii), permitted an employee to continue 
working in a bona fide employment capacity. Therefore, because the compensation that Mr. 
Hunt received from Perry Homes is consistent with the three conditions of that regulation
(not to mention the fact that the complaint should be summarily dismissed as a matter of 
procedure), the Commission should find no reason to believe that the Respondents violated 
the Act and promptly close the file in this matter.

Sincerely,

Chris K. Gober
Counsel to Wesley Hunt,

Hunt for Congress, and
Cabell Hobbs, in his official capacity as Treasurer
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